
 Board Meetings 
ARCH CAPE WATER & SANITARY DISTRICTS 

32065 E. Shingle Mill Lane, Arch Cape, OR 97102 

(503) 436-2790

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED, IF THEY WISH, TO ATTEND BY 

TELEPHONE OR ZOOM LINK … PLEASE USE THE 

FOLLOWING PHONE NUMBER OR LINK TO ACCESS 

To Join the Zoom Video Meeting Paste the following in your browser address window: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81513104224

Active Zoom Video Meeting Link also available at 
www.archcapewater.org 

Call: 

Date  : 

Time : 

Join by Telephone: 1-669-900-6833
Meeting ID:  815 1310 4224
Meeting Passcode: None Required

Assistance: 503-436-2790

Wednesday 16 March 2022
6:00 PM  

Agenda:    As posted in the adjacent notices & 

 www.archcapewater.org



ARCH CAPE DOMESTIC WATER SUPPLY DISTRICT 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

Wednesday March 16th, 2022  
6:00 P.M. 

 
To Join Meeting by Video Link: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81513104224 
Join by Telephone: 1-669-900-6833 

Meeting ID:  815 1310 4224 
                                                                     

 
I. Call to Order Dan Seifer, President 

 
 II. Public Comments Dan 
 
 III. Agenda Approval Dan 
 
 IV.  Consent Agenda (Action) Dan 

A. Approve Minutes – February 17th  Regular Board Meeting 
  B. Accept February Budget and Finance Reports 
  C. Authorize Payment of Accounts 
  D. Accept Correspondence Requiring No Action 
 
V.     Old Business                                                                                                                                       
     A. Arch Cape Forest: Dan 

    First Amendment to Option and Purchase and Sale Agreement (Action) Dan   
  ARPA Funding / Business Oregon Grant (Information/Action) Phil Chick 
    Public Hearing: Decision to Purchase Arch Cape Forest (Information/Action) Dan 
  Request For Proposals: Selection of Forester and Project Manager (Information/Action) Dan 
    Outreach (Information) Linda Murray, Debra Birkby 

  
  B. Budget Committee Appointments Positions 1 and 3 (Action) Dan 
  C. Staff Performance Evaluations (Information/Action) Dan 
       
 VI.    New Business 
  A.    
      
VII.   Reports (Information) 

             A. Accounts Receivable Report Teri Fladstol, Jigsaw Consulting 
   B. District Manager’s Report and Correspondence for Action Phil 

 C. Board Members’ Comments and Reports Dan 
  

VIII. April Agenda Items and Meeting  (Information/Action) Dan 
 

 IX.  Public Comment Dan 
 X.  Adjournment Dan 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81513104224


WATER :  REVENUE

Budget vs. Actual Finl Rpt  
1/

2021-22  Jul 21  Aug 21  Sep 21  Oct 21  Nov 21  Dec 21  Jan 22  Feb 22  Mar 22  Apr 22  May 22  Jun 22 Total %

Arch Cape Water District Budget 8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 53% 75% 83% 92% 100% Rcvd

2021-22 0.62 0.50 0.47

Cash on Hand 204,502

Ck Interest -             0.32             0.32             0.28             0.61             0.44             0.28             0.57             0.28             3.10                

User Fees 182,280 19,065.00    4,650.00      18,290.00    24,025.00    2,325.00      46,503.38    25,848.44    1,860.00      142,566.82     0.78

Excess Usage Charges 14,000 1,436.15      894.91         5,857.25      8,112.04      1,335.39      2,503.32      348.04         825.06         21,312.16       1.52

Debt Service 20,772 2,091.00 510.00 2,006.00 2,635.00 255.00 5,015.00 1,700.00 204.00 14,416.00       0.69

Sanitary District IGA
2
 Revenue 157,597 11,134.24    11,405.36    12,215.63    11,387.58    10,193.51    56,336.32       0.36

LGIP Interest 900 125.39         115.93         110.44         38.00           389.76            

Misc. Income 200.00 1,025.00 200.00 1,425.00         

Meter Hookup Fee 1,400 700.00 700.00 1,400.00         

Cannon Beach IGA -                  

Cannon View Park 735 -                  0.00

Total Revenue 377,684 33,852.10    18,476.52    38,479.60    46,160.23    15,134.34    54,221.98    28,597.05    2,927.34      -              -              -              -              237,849.16     

Capital Projects

Hook-ups 11,726 5,863.00      5,863.00      11,726.00       1.00

Transfer -                  

Expenditures -                  

Balance 90,200 79,130.00 5,863.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,863.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,726.00

79130.00

Arch Cape Forest Watershed Plan (2020-21)

IFA Water Source Protection Funding 30,000       

IFA Water Source Protection Receipts -                  

Expenditures 11,115.00    15,322.50    26,437.50       

Balance ($3,562.50) ($14,677.50) ($30,000.00) ($30,000.00) ($30,000.00)

(3,563) 79,130

LGIP (Additions) 30,000.00    30,000.00       

LGIP Withdrawals (30,000.00) (30,000.00)      

LGIP Interest 125.39 115.93 110.44 90.65 80.81 94.27 95.04 85.88 798.41

Service Charge (0.05) (0.05)

LGIP Balance 248,055 248,180.45  248,296.38  218,406.82  218,497.42  218,578.23  248,672.50  248,767.54  248,853.42  

Columbia Bank :  1196 Acct 40,976.00    26,588.78    61,068.46    69,479.57    34,255.26    

Total Cash 289,156.45  274,885.16  279,475.28  287,976.99  252,833.49  248,672.50  248,767.54  248,853.42  

Note 
1
 : Modified Cash Basis : IGA Revenue from the Sanitary District reflected in the month incurred

Note 
2
 :     Intergovernmental Agreement

BVA_FINANCIAL_REPORT_2021-22.2 Page 2  of  4 S. M. Hill



WATER :  EXPENSE

Budget vs. Actual Finl Rpt  
1

2021-22  Jul 21  Aug 21  Sep 21  Oct 21  Nov 21  Dec 21  Jan 22  Feb 22  Mar 22  Apr 22  May 22  Jun 22 Total Balance %

Arch Cape Water District Budget 8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 53% 75% 83% 92% 100% Spent Left Spent

2021-22 SD Hours % 54% 51% 55% 54% 57% 62% 50% 47% 55%

Accounts % 54% 54% 54% 54% 54% 38% 50% 47% 54%

Manager 82,030            6,858.76 6,858.76 6,858.76 6,858.76 6,858.76 6,858.76 6,858.76 6,858.76 54,870 27,160 67

Operator 61,936            5,066.44 4,942.19 4,859.36 5,190.68 4,900.78 4,859.36 4,638.48 4,417.60 38,875 23,061 63

FICA 0.0765 10,822            912.28 902.77 896.44 921.78 899.60 896.44 879.54 862.64 7,171 3,651 66

Retirement 0.16 31,405            1,300.36 4,107.16 2,807.00 2,740.14 3.42 2,886.06 5,489.36 2,709.75 22,043 9,362 70

Med. Ins 35,500            2,763.52 2,763.52 2,763.52 2,763.52 2,763.52 2,898.24 2,898.24 2,898.24 22,512 12,988 63

Worker's Comp 3,300              26.94 27 3,273 1

Total Personal Svc 224,994          16,901.36 19,574.40 18,212.02 18,474.88 15,426.08 18,398.86 20,764.38 17,746.99 145,499 79,495 65

Administrative Services 29,706            2,439.00 2,439.00 2,439.00 2,439.00 2,439.00 2,474.00 2,439.00 2,800.00 19,908 9,798 67

Temporary Help 5,000              525.00 525 4,475 11

Clothing Allowance 850                 0 850 0

Education 2,000              933.00 100.00 1,033 967 52

Travel 2,000              0 2,000 0

Office Supplies 1,500              150.06 1,210.92 202.59 474.66 2,038 (538) 136

Postage 1,600              481.28 224.90 706 894 44

Vehicle 3,000              321.77 206.57 189.29 174.22 258.54 176.42 317.46 55.95 1,700 1,300 57

SD Facilities Use Charges 3,600              3,375.00 3,375 225 94

Payroll Service 579                 607.95 608 (29) 105

Liabability & Property Insurance 7,063              7,258.00 7,258 (195) 103

Licenses 2,000              0 2,000 0

Maintenance 28,000            140.36 1,992.07 7,088.04 3,023.76 5,166.66 5,238.61 2,351.68 341.49 25,343 2,657 91

CIP Chemicals 5,000              2,314.72 3,612.14 5,927 (927) 119

Watershed 55,000            6,403.85 5,031.00 2,349.25 18,640.00 16.10 32,440 22,560 59

Dues / Taxes / Fees 900                 363.68 406.61 75.00 329.30 (38.00) 1,137 (237) 126

Professional Services 5,700              96.00 96.00 192 5,508 3

Auditing 5,000              0 5,000 0

Legal Services 2,000              125.00 773.29 210.00 1,108 892 55

Notices 700                 0 700 0

Utilities 10,000            1,261.45 760.12 710.37 801.26 751.01 3,254.37 3,408.99 10,948 (948) 109

Total Materials & Svc 171,198          3,264.81 11,684.81 22,514.67 11,909.96 8,890.52 14,023.80 34,463.10 7,494.09 114,246 56,952 67

IFA Water Plant Upgrade  :  
2

20,772            20,771.70 20,772 0 100

Total Debt Service 20,772            -              -              -              -              20,772        -              -              -              -              -              -              -              20,772 0 100

Capital Outlay 2,000              -         

Tot Gen Fund Expenditures 418,963          20,166.17 31,259.21 40,726.69 30,384.84 45,088.30 32,422.66 55,227.48 25,241.08 280,516 138,447 67

Contingency 60,000            0 60,000 0

Unappropriated Balance

Operating Reserve 35,837            

-                 

Undesignated 56,545            

   Total Unappropriated Bal 92,382            

   Total Conting & Unapp Bal 152,382          

   Total Requirements 571,345          

     Water District Accounts 294                 294             295             295             295             295             295             295             

     Sanitary District Accounts 345                 345             346             346             346             346             346             346             

Note 
1
 : Modified Cash Basis : IGA Charge from the Water District made in the following month but reflected in the month incurred

Admin Services charged to the Sanitary District on the Accounts %, all other allocatable expenses shaded green on SD Hours %

Note 
2
 : IFA : Business Oregon - Water Plant Upgrade Loan $536K  30 Year Loan# SZ9006 at 1% :  2011 thru 2041

Annual Payments Due 12/1/2012 of $22,993.08 and each December 1st thereafter:  $20,771.70

SDAO Flex-Lease Loan Program : $395K Series 2003H at 2.25% - 5.5% : Water Tank

2004 - 2024 Retired early in July 2016

BVA_FINANCIAL_REPORT_2021-22.2 Page 1  of  4 S. M. Hill



Check # Date Arch Cape Water Account  Paid Amount 

91 2/17/2022 Consoliated Supply Maint $231.55
88 2/17/2022 Tillamook County Pioneer Legal Notices $90.00
89 2/17/2022 Pacific Power Util $89.18
92 2/17/2022 Consoliated Supply Maint $231.55
93 2/17/2022 NAPA Auto Parts Vehicle $55.95
94 2/17/2022 Tillamook County Pioneer Legal Notices $120.00

EFT 2/18/2022 Amazon.com Off Supp $177.66
EFT 2/25/2022 USPS Postage $208.80

2/26/2022 Verizon wireless Utilities ($70.16)
95 2/26/2022 A-Boy Electric & Plumbing Maint $2.69
96 2/26/2022 Laurelwood Farm Maint $58.50
97 2/26/2022 William J. MacLean Payroll Service $4,170.88
98 2/26/2022 SDIS Health-Med-Dental $190.61

EFT 3/7/2022 S OR Short School Education $400.00
EFT 3/7/2022 EZ Shipping Drop Off Shipping $118.51
EFT 3/10/2022 Country Media Legal Notices $534.34
EFT 3/10/2022 USPS Postage $46.40
99 3/10/2022 CenturyLink Util $156.61

100 3/10/2022 CS&S Maint $68.72
101 3/10/2022 Industrial Systems Maint $1,231.00
102 3/10/2022 Jackson Oil Vehicle $154.64
109 3/10/2022 Jigsaw Consulting Services Admin Asst $2,340.68
109 3/10/2022 Jigsaw Consulting Services Postage $96.97
109 3/10/2022 Jigsaw Consulting Services Off Supp $110.35
110 3/10/2022 Northwest Fire Extinguisher Maint $125.00
111 3/10/2022 One Call Concepts Maint $4.80
112 3/10/2022 Pacific Power Util $638.31
113 3/10/2022 Springboard Forestry Watershed $1,472.50



ARCH CAPE DOMESTIC WATER SUPPLY DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION 22-01 WD AND ORDER 
 
 
Whereas, the Arch Cape Domestic Water Supply District (the “District”) relies on Shark and 
Asbury Creeks for its water supply; and 

 
Whereas, the water in Shark and Asbury Creeks is exposed to sediment and contaminants from 
intensive logging upon the lands containing the watershed (the “Watershed Lands”) which are 
currently owned by Onion Peak, LLC, an Oregon limited liability company (“Onion Peak”); and  

 
Whereas, owning the Watershed Lands will allow the District to significantly reduce water 
turbidity, sedimentation and contamination, improve the infrastructure of the watershed and the 
resiliency of the local forest as well as provide some revenue from sustainable forest 
management, protect threatened species, and allow recreational opportunities; and 
 
Whereas, the District, as buyer, entered into a Timberlands Option and Purchase and Sale 
Agreement dated as of May, 2020, with Onion Peak, as seller, as may be amended from time to 
time (the “Option Agreement”), providing the District an option to purchase the Watershed 
Lands from Onion Peak or an affiliate at their appraised value; and 
 
Whereas, the purchase price for the Watershed Lands has been determined by an independent 
qualified appraisal approved by the District and Onion Peak; and 
 
Whereas, the District now has an opportunity to acquire the Watershed Lands through generous 
federal and state grants; and 
 
Whereas, it is the best interests of the District to exercise its option at an appropriate time and in 
an appropriate manner, and to purchase, improve and own the Watershed Lands pursuant to said 
grants and the public interest; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT: 
 
RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the District approves the transaction contemplated by the 
Option Agreement and all related documents contemplated or required hereunder or to be 
executed in connection therewith (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”), and authorizes its 
Officers and District Manager, with counsel, to take such steps as are necessary and appropriate 
to conclude the transaction contemplated in the Transaction Documents in accordance with all 
applicable grants; and 
 
RESOLVED AND ORDERED that Philip A. Chick, the District Manager, and Daniel J. Seifer, 
the acting President of the Board of Commissioners of the District, or any respective successor 
District Manager or President of the Board of Commissioners of the District, as applicable (each, 
an “Authorized Signatory Party”), are hereby authorized on behalf of the District to: (a) execute 
and deliver any Transaction Documents in substantially the form as has been presented to the 



District Board of Commissioners (the “Board”), as may be reasonably modified by District 
and/or any other respective signatory parties prior to execution; (b) execute and deliver any 
documents required with regard to the grant funding being used for the acquisition of the 
Watershed Lands in substantially the form as has been presented to the Board, as may be 
reasonably modified by District and/or any other respective signatory parties prior to execution; 
and (c) take all further action reasonably necessary to effectuate the performance by District 
under any Transaction Documents or any documents required with regard to the grant funding 
being used for the acquisition of the Watershed Lands. The execution, acknowledgment and 
delivery of all such documents shall be conclusive evidence that the same have been authorized 
by the District through the Board; and 
 
RESOLVED AND ORDERED that all actions taken by an Authorized Signatory Party, the 
Board or the District to date in connection with the foregoing resolutions, the Option Agreement, 
any Transaction Documents or any documents required with regard to the grant funding being 
used for the acquisition of the Watershed Lands, are hereby in all respects confirmed, ratified 
and approved 
 
 
 
 
Adopted and signed this ___ day of _________, 2022 
 
 
       Daniel J. Seifer, President 
 
 
       ________________________ 
 
 
Attest  ____________________ 



                                             ARCH CAPE SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday March 16th, 2022  
Following the 6PM Water Board Meeting 

 
To Join Meeting by Video Link:  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81513104224 
 

Join by Telephone: 1-669-900-6833 
Meeting ID:  815 1310 4224 

 I. Call to Order Darr Tindall, President 

 II. Public Comments Darr 

  III. Agenda Approval Darr 

IV. Consent Agenda (Action) Darr 
A. Approve Minutes – February 17th Regular Meeting 

  B. Accept February Budget and Finance Reports 
  C. Authorize Payment of Accounts 
  D. Accept Correspondence Requiring No Action   

 V.    Old Business 

          A.  Budget Committee Appointments Positions 3 and 4 (Action) Darr                                                
          B. Wastewater Facilities Plan Update (Information) Phil 
   
        

 VI. New Business     
  A.  

    
 VII. Reports (Information)   

             A. Accounts Receivable Report Teri Fladstol, Jigsaw Consulting  
   B. District Manager’s Report and Correspondence for Action Phil Chick 

 C. Board Members’ Comments and Reports Darr 

VIII. April Agenda Items (Information) Darr 
        

IX.     Public Comments Darr 
  

XI  Adjourn   Darr 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81513104224


SANITARY :  REVENUE

Budget vs. Actual Finl Rpt 2021-22  Jul 21  Aug 21  Sep 21  Oct 21  Nov 21  Dec 21  Jan 22  Feb 22  Mar 22  Apr 22  May 22  Jun 22 Total %

Arch Cape Sanitary District Budget 8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 53% 75% 83% 92% 100% Rcvd

2021-22 0.62 0.50 0.47

Cash on Hand 162,340 0.38 0.50 0.62

Ck Interest -             0.77 1.02 0.79 1.09 0.51 4.18

User Fees 320,160 17,632.00 21,344.00 19,256.00 40,269.00 18,560.00 80,504.00 26,448.00 14,384.00 238,397.00 0.74

Excess Usage Charges 9,500 1,929.46 459.34 1,947.60 9,603.05 1,520.46 1,987.52 4,245.00 1,272.36 22,964.79 2.42

Debt Service 53,280 2,964.00 3,588.00 3,237.00 6,786.00 3,120.00 13,533.00 4,446.00 2,418.00 40,092.00 0.75

Facilities Use by WD 3,300         3,375.00 3,375.00 1.02

Misc. Income -             1,717.00 1,717.00

LGIP Interest 4,000         93.34                86.70                84.15                78.13                121.81              464.13

Clatsop Cty Land Sales -             250.52 250.52

Tax Lien Receipts 0.00

Bond Receipts 147,000 1,744.59 837.46 504.08 11,418.86 125,063.00 139,567.99 0.95

Bond Interest -             0.66 0.71 0.89 0.13 1.23 3.62

Total Revenue 537,240 26,332.34 29,692.23 25,030.51 68,156.26 148,387.01 96,024.90 35,139.50 18,074.98 446,837.73

3,339.41

1.22

Capital Projects

Hook Ups 16,762 8,772.00 8,772.00 17,544.00 1.05

Transfer from GF

Expenditures 8,772.00 8,772.00

Balance 97,097 82,111.21 8,772.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 90,652.21

82,111       

T.A.G. - Facility Plan Update

T.A.G. - Funding 20,000       20,000.00         

T.A.G. - Receipts -                   

Balance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 20,000.00

GO Bond - WWTP Upgrade

Property Tax Imposed 1,489,477 152,000.00 1,641,477.00

Total Bond Receipts incl Int 1,439,893 1,745.25 838.17 504.97 11,418.99 125,064.23 1,609.72 2,042.65 1,583,116.82

USDA Plant Upgrade Payments 
1

1,446,000 1,446,000.00

GO Bond Balance (5,212) (4,361.91) 2,583.42 1,343.14 11,923.96 136,483.22 138,092.94 2,042.65 #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! #VALUE! 137,116.82

(6,107)        1,745                838                   505                   11,419              125,064            

LGIP (Additions) 1,995.77 838.17 504.97 11,418.99 125,064.23 1,471.40 1,927.10     143,220.63

LGIP (Purchases) 90,000.00 90,000.00

LGIP Withdrawals (45,000.00) (13,000.15) (144,600.05) (202,600.20)     

LGIP Interest 93.34 86.70 84.15 78.13 121.81 138.32 115.55 718.00

Service Charge 0.00

LGIP Balance 182,754 184,842.61 185,767.48 186,356.60 197,853.72 368,039.76 356,649.33 214,091.93

Columbia Bank :  1218 Acct 102,918.58       130,179.49       105,388.99       134,462.15       61,389.66         

Total Cash 287,761.19       315,946.97       291,745.59       332,315.87       429,429.42       

Note 
1
 : United States Department of Agriculture (USDA)  Rural Development  $2.5M  30 Year Loan  :  2011 - 2040

at 4% in 2010 w/ level $144,600 Annual payments on 20 January expiring in 2040 :  Fund Code/Loan #92/02

BVA_FINANCIAL_REPORT_2021-22.2 Page 4  of  4 S. M. Hill



SANITARY :  EXPENSE

Budget vs. Actual Finl Rpt  
1

2021-22  Jul 21  Aug 21  Sep 21  Oct 21  Nov 21  Dec 21  Jan 22  Feb 22  Mar 22  Apr 22  May 22  Jun 22 Total Balance %

Arch Cape Sanitary District Budget 8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 53% 75% 83% 92% 100% Spent Remaining Spent

2021-22 SD Hours % 54% 51% 55% 54% 57% 62% 50% 47% 55%

Accounts % 54% 54% 54% 54% 54% 38% 50% 47% 54%

 Total Personal Svc -             -            -              -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             0 0

Water District IGA Charges 157,597      11,134.24 11,405.36 12,215.63 11,387.58 10,193.51 10,391.66 66,728 90,869 42

Liabability & Property Insurance 13,500        9,855.00 9,855 3,645 73

Licenses 2,800          3,009.00 89.95 3,099 (299) 111

Maintenance 109,000      4,674.33 1,232.82 15,010.69 8,062.91 23,879.52 4,411.39 7,241.57 262.98 64,776 44,224 59

Chemicals 6,000          1,040.00 812.50 812.50 325.00 1,012.50 4,003 1,998 67

Inflow & Infiltration 4,000          0 4,000

Dues / Taxes / Fees 1,100          40.41 515.52 599.06 8.25 1,163 (63) 106

Professional Services 6,000          197.62 1,540.00 414.00 2,152 3,848 36

Emergency Prep Sanitation 500             -           

Auditing 10,000        0 10,000 0

Legal Services 5,000          0 5,000 0

Notices 700             40.68 41 659 6

Utilities 46,000        55.78 5,798.33 3,580.65 2,524.54 3,722.90 4,365.75 2,189.54 22,237 23,763 48

Total Materials & Svc 362,197      16,944.76 21,683.81 30,806.97 22,490.55 38,608.43 22,120.36 20,123.31 1,275.48 174,054 187,643 48

ODEQ : Irrigation Site Loan  :  
2

15,609        7,861.00 7,861 7,748 50

OECD Loan - Facil Engrng  :   
3

19,319        19,319.09 19,319 (0) 100

DEQ Loan/Grant - Facil Impr : 
4

19,383        19,383.23 19,383 0 100

Total Debt Service 54,311        -            -              -             -             46,563        -             -             -             -             -             -             -             46,563 7,748 86

Capital Outlay -           0

Tot Gen Fund Expenditures 416,508      16,944.76 21,683.81 30,806.97 22,490.55 85,171.75 22,120.36 199,218 217,290 48

Contingency 43,244        0 43,244 0

Transfer to Capital Fund

T.A.G. - Facility Plan Update 20,000        

ODEQ Irrig Site Ln#11432 reserve 15,256        

Operating Reserve 54,912        

Undesignated 23,200        

   Total Unappropriated Bal 93,368        

   Total Conting & Unapp Bal 136,612      

   Total Requirements 573,120      

Note 
1
 : Modified Cash Basis : IGA Charge from the Water District reflected in the month incurred

Admin Services charged to the Sanitary District on the Accounts %, all other allocatable WD expenses shaded green on SD Hours %

Note 
2
 : Oregon Dept of Environmental Quality (ODEQ)  Clean Water State Revolving Fund  $225K 20 Year Loan : 2003 - 2022

w/ level $7,748 Payments on 1 June and descending $8,544 Payments on 1 December expiring in 2022 

$15,256 Required Reserve : Loan # R11432

Note 
3
 : Oregon Economic & Community Development (OECD) (IFA : Business OR) $250K  20 Year Loan : 2007 - 2026

at 4.56%  w/ level $19,319.03 Payments on 1 December expiring in 2026  :  Project #Y06007

Note 
4
 : DEQ Loan & Grant Prgm ($340K + $270K) Y13002   I & I, Salley's Alley, WWTP SMU Upgrade :  Under Consideration w/ TA Grant

ODEQ State Revolving Fund Loan Program   $70K  5 Year  Loan at 2.36%  in 2005 was successfully retired

in October of 2009  :  SRF Loan # R11430

Special Districts Association of Oregon (SDAO)  $80K  5 Year 2006 Loan beginning at 2.8% and ending at 3.4%

w/ payments twice yearly at 1 Jul & 1 Jan :  Flex Lease for Equipment was successfully retired in July of 2010 

BVA_FINANCIAL_REPORT_2021-22.2 Page 3  of  4 S. M. Hill



Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

EFT 2/23/2022 Safeway Maint 14.28$                   
8521 2/26/2022 IDEXX Distribution Maint 248.70$                 
8522 3/10/2022 NAPA Auto Parts Maint 22.58$                   
8523 3/10/2022 Pacific Power - Utilities 2,679.06$              



Manager Report Wednesday March 16th, 2022 
 
 
 

 
 
WATER DISTRICT: 
 
The Water plant distributed 1.2 million gallons to town in February. One of the chemical dosing pumps used for 
cleaning on Skid 2 has had to be sent to the factory for a  
 
Valve exercising continues in the distribution system.  
 
Invoices were mailed out on March 10th using the new billing program. Teri and I worked extensively on Thursday 
getting account details and meter reads input into the system with UBMax support. This will be the most challenging 
invoicing period, and things should become easier as we begin to upload/input meter reads into the system each month.   
For a brand new startup, I feel that the process went well and will serve the District well.  So far, about 50 customers 
have signed up to receive their bills by email. Special thanks to Teri for working through a bunch of issues with UB 
Max and getting accurate invoices sent out on time.  
 
I’ll be submitting a Letter of Interest next week for a Safe Drinking Water Loan/Grant for replacement of the district’s 
water meters and water treatment membranes. Although coming earlier than anticipated, membrane replacement has 
been accounted for in our long range planning and the cost is lower than planned. Depending on the amount of grant 
money associated with the loan, this could be a good funding option to be considered.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
SANITARY DISTRICT: 
 
We received 5.9” of rainfall in February and the plant received 3.2 million gallons of influent. 
 
The blower for MBR #2 was installed on February 24th through Aerzen’s advanced exchange program.  
Both blowers are now able to work and are alternating duty, as designed.  
 
Biosolids were hauled to Seaside for processing by Ed’s Septic  
 
Spartan Environmental Services TV inspected 3400’ of collection line, as part of our wastewater facilities plan update 
project. Leaking homeowner sewer laterals continue to contribute as the largest source of infiltration and inflow into 
the collection system.  
 
Invoices were mailed out on March 10th using the new billing program. Teri and I worked extensively on Thursday 
getting account details and meter reads input into the system with UBMax support. This will be the most challenging 
invoicing period, and things should become easier as we begin to upload/input meter reads into the system each month.   
For a brand new startup, I feel that the process went well and will serve the District well.  So far, about 50 customers 
have signed up to receive their bills by email. Special thanks to Teri for working through a bunch of issues with UB 
Max and getting accurate invoices sent out on time.  
 
 



RFP Response - Project Management Services – Sustainable Northwest 
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Phil Chick,  
 
Sustainable Northwest is a 501(c)3 nonprofit organization with expertise in forestry & wood 
products, stakeholder engagement & facilitation, and grant management. Our clients and past 
partners include the U.S. Forest Service, Oregon Department of Forestry, and the Oregon 
Community Foundation. Our 19 person staff is based out of our Portland, Oregon, headquarters 
and provides services across five western states.  
 
Sustainable Northwest staff have assisted the Arch Cape Domestic Water Supply District in its 
campaign to acquire the Arch Cape Forest since 2017. We have fiscally sponsored grants on 
behalf of the partnership and received awards from the Oregon Watershed Enhancement Board 
(2018), Oregon DEQ (2019), and the Hollis Foundation (2022). We look forward to continuing 
our partnership with the Water District as we complete this historic achievement.   
 
We have prepared a response to the RFP for Project Management Services in the following 
pages.  

Page 2 reiterates the Purpose, Objectives and Scope of Work 
Page 3 states the proposed project budget 
Page 4 describes our staff qualifications 

 
Thank you  
 
Ben Dair Rothfuss 
Conservation Finance Sr. Manager  



RFP Response - Project Management Services – Sustainable Northwest 
 

2 
 

Purpose, Objectives, and Scope of Work  
The purpose of this engagement is to provide project management services to the Arch Cape 
Domestic Water Supply District as it completes the acquisition of ~1,500 acres of coastal 
timberland in 2022.  
 
The objectives of this project shall be to  

1. Assist District’s Finance Committee in preparation, evaluation, presentation, revision as 
directed by Finance Committee and finalization of a Long Term pro forma Financial Plan 
for ACF. 

2. Review, identify, report and monitor all restrictions and requirements of the Grant, and 
record District’s compliance therewith. 

3. Coordinate with contracted Bookkeeper to summarize financial reports for quarterly and 
annual grant reporting deadlines, including identification, selection and creation of 
appropriate financial summaries to assure compliance with all requirements of the Grant. 

4. Review, identify, report and monitor all restrictions and requirements of the District’s U.S. 
Forest Service / Oregon Department of Forestry Forest Legacy Program grants, and 
record District’s compliance therewith. 

5. Assist District’s Advisory Committee in preparation, presentation, revision as directed by 
District Board and finalization of District’s Multi-Resource Management Plan for ACF 
including those portions concerning recreational uses and operations, including 
coordination with professional consultants and project partners. 

6. Assist District’s Advisory Committee in preparation, presentation, revision as directed by 
District Board and finalization of those portions of District’s Multi-Resource Management 
Plan for ACF concerning conservation operations, including coordination with 
professional consultants and project partners. 

7. Identify, record and present all monetary and in-kind contributions toward ACF for 
consideration by U.S. Forest Service and Oregon Department of Forestry as “local 
share” pursuant to District’s Forest Legacy Program grants. 

8. Draft, present and revise as directed by District Outreach Committee materials for 
distribution for educational and operational coordination with public and private entities 
for mutually beneficial ACF uses and activities. 

9. At the request of the District, attend and conduct public and private tours, meetings and 
events to discuss ACF issues, status, conditions and requirements. 

10. Assist District in evaluation of ACF property acquisition and transactional tasks related to 
acquisition. 

11. Assist District in evaluation of ACF operations upon acquisition and tasks related to such 
operations. 

12. At the request of the District, identify potential markets for ACF products upon 
acquisition of ACF, advise on marketing plans and recommendations for ACF products, 
prepare or review appropriate documents for sale of ACF products. 

 
  



RFP Response - Project Management Services – Sustainable Northwest 
 

3 
 

Budget 
The 2022 billable rate for Sustainable Northwest staff at the “Project Manager” level is 
$120/hour. The following tables outline the expected schedule, effort, and travel budget required 
to accomplish the outlined objectives.  
 
Table 1. Description of Activities  
Activity 
No. Timing Frequency 

Duration 
(hours) Total Hours 

1 January 2022 - March 2022 Every two weeks 7 24 

2 January 2022 - December 2022 Monthly and annually 2 and 10 34 

3 February 2022 Once 15 15 

4     

5 June 2022 - September 2022 Every two weeks 4 32 

6 June 2022 - September 2022 Monthly 7 28 

7 January 2022 - July 2022 Monthly 2 14 

8 January 2022 - December 2022 Monthly 4 48 

9 January 2022 - December 2022 Monthly 4 48 

10 January 2022 - July 2022 Monthly 4 48 

11 June 2022 - September 2022 Monthly 7 28 

12 October 2022 - December 2022 Once 20 20 

   Hours 339 

   Rate $120 

   Total $40,680 
 
Table 2. Budget Summary 

Staff $40,680 

Supplies, Materials, & Misc. $500 

Travel $2,000 

Total not-to-exceed $43,180 
 
Terms and Conditions  

● Invoices are payable monthly;  
● Activities will be billed as completed;  
● Sustainable Northwest utilizes a standard contractor agreement (see attachment).  

 



RFP Response - Project Management Services – Sustainable Northwest 
 

4 
 

Qualifications and Staff 
Ben Dair Rothfuss, Sr. Conservation Finance Manager. Ben serves as the lead consultant 
on the Arch Cape Forest project. Ben brings five years of direct experience with the Arch Cape 
Water District and the history of the proposed forest acquisition. Ben works across Sustainable 
Northwest’s Forest, Energy, and Green Markets program areas to increase the funding 
available to conservation projects by delivering analytical support and business services to 
partners. Ben holds degrees in environmental management from Yale University and biology 
from Swarthmore College.  
 
Kaola Swanson, Forest Program Director. Kaola oversees the Forest Program at Sustainable 
Northwest. Kaola is deeply committed to the concept of the radical middle and finding practical 
solutions to balance multiple outcomes. Before joining Sustainable Northwest, Kaola was the 
Oregon Program Director for Pacific Forest Trust, where she worked to promote policies and 
projects for the benefits of wood, water, wildlife and climate. Her earlier work as Associate 
Conservation Director at The Freshwater Trust focused on developing market-based programs 
to increase the pace and scale of freshwater conservation in the Pacific Northwest. A native of 
North Carolina, her love of western forests is rooted in her experience living and working in the 
Western Cascades.  Kaola has a bachelor’s degree in Environmental Science from University of 
Oregon and a master’s degree in Environmental Management from Duke University. 
 
Ngu Castro, Chief Financial Officer. Ngu directs all aspects of financial reporting and 
compliance. Ngu Castro is a Finance Executive, Consultant, and Advisor with a decade of 
success across retail, restaurant, property management, healthcare, construction and non-
profit. Her broad areas of expertise include financial modeling & forecasting, process 
improvement, technical accounting, budgeting, and cash management. She joined Sustainable 
Northwest in 2018 where she is responsible for the Finance and Accounting function of the non-
profit organization as well as its for-profit subsidiary. Prior to Sustainable Northwest, she was a 
Finance Executive for various non-profit organizations in Honolulu. She also served as Financial 
Consultant providing strategic financial modeling and planning for several Low-Income Housing 
Tax Credit projects in Honolulu. She earned her bachelor’s in Hotel and Travel management 
from Vietnam National University of Hanoi, a bachelor’s in Accounting from the University of 
Hawaii at Manoa. She also earned and retained Certified Public Accountant certification since 
2015. 



First Amendment to Timberlands Option and Purchase and Sale Agreement Page 1 
PDX\32730108.6 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO TIMBERLANDS OPTION AND PURCHASE AND SALE 
AGREEMENT 

(Arch Cape Watershed) 

 This First Amendment to Timberlands Option and Purchase and Sale Agreement (the 
“Amendment”), is entered into effective as of March __, 2022 (the “Effective Date”), by and 
between Arch Cape Domestic Water Supply District, an Oregon special district(“Optionee”), 
and Onion Peak, LLC, an Oregon limited liability company (“Optionor”).  Capitalized terms 
used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Agreement 
(defined below). 

RECITALS: 

A. Pursuant to that certain Timberlands Option and Purchase and Sale Agreement dated 
effectiveas of May 29, 2020, by and between Optionor and Optionee(the “Agreement”), 
Optionor granted to Optionee an Option to buy the Real Property located in Clatsop County, 
Oregon, as more particularly described in Exhibit “A” of the Agreement. 

B. The parties desire to amend the Agreement by (i) approving the Appraisal and agreeing 
upon the final Purchase Price for the Real Property, (ii) establishing a target Closing Date for 
2022,and (iii) allowing Optionor to assign its rights and obligations under the Agreement to its 
sole member, as more particularly set forth below. 

AGREEMENT: 

 Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and for other 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 
hereby agree as follows: 

1. Recitals.  The above recitals are incorporated herein by reference. 

2. Appraisal & Purchase Price. Optionor and Optionee hereby fully approve the Appraisal 
Report dated November 26, 2021, prepared by Zachary M. Dewees, CF at Mason, Bruce 
& Girard, Inc. for the Real Property, which is the Appraisal for all intents and purposes 
under the Agreement, and agree that the Purchase Price for the Real Property, as 
concluded by the Appraisal in accordance with Section 1.6 and Section 1.7 of the 
Agreement, shall be Four Million Six Hundred Ninety Thousand and No/100 Dollars 
($4,690,000.00). For the avoidance of doubt, the date of the Appraisal is November 26, 
2021, notwithstanding any statement contained therein that indicates that it was issued or 
effective “as of July 7, 2021.” 

3. Target Closing Date. Notwithstanding the terms of Section 5.1 or any other term or 
provision contained in the Agreement regarding the timing of Closing, if Optionee 
exercises the Option by way of delivery to Optionor of an Exercise Notice pursuant to 
Section 1.4 of the Agreement, Option or and Optionee shall make best efforts to 
consummate the Closing on or before June 30, 2022 (the “Target Closing Date”). If for 
any reason the Target Closing Date must be extended to reasonably accommodate 
Optionee’s grant funders and the time frames that they may respectively need in order to 



First Amendment to Timberlands Option and Purchase and Sale Agreement Page 2 
PDX\32730108.6 

deliver to Optionee all of the funds necessary to fund the Purchase Price, Optionor and 
Optionee agree to reasonably extend the Target Closing Date by written amendment to 
the Agreement, so long as such extended Target Closing Date is no later than December 
31, 2022. 

4. Forest Legacy Program Disclaimer. At the request of ODF, which administers the 
federal FLP, the parties hereto agree that the FLP is a voluntary program, based on 
willing buyer and willing seller conditions, and eminent domain cannot be used if 
negotiations between the parties do not result in an amicable agreement. 

5. Assignment.  The parties agree that, prior to Closing, Optionor may assign its rights and 
obligations under the Agreement to Optionor’s sole member, Ecotrust Forests II, LLC, an 
Oregon limited liability company (“Assignee”), so long as (a) Assignee assumes 
Optionor’s rights and obligations under the Agreement and Optionor remains liable and 
responsible for any duties and obligations to Optioneee arising under the Agreement 
(unless Optionee otherwise agrees in writing), and (b) Optionor provides Optionee with 
written notice of such assignment.  Contemporaneously with such assignment, Optionor 
will convey the Real Property to Assignee, subject at all times to the terms of the 
Agreement, as amended by this Amendment. 

6. Full Force and Effect. This Amendment modifies and amends the Agreement. In the 
event of any inconsistency between the Agreement and this Amendment, this 
Amendment shall prevail.  Except as expressly modified and amended by this 
Amendment, the Agreement is and shall remain in full force and effect according to its 
terms. 

7. Counterparts; Email Signatures. This Amendment may be executed simultaneously or 
in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall 
be one and the same instrument.  Email transmission of a signed original document shall 
be the same as delivery of an original.  At the request of either party, the parties shall 
confirm email transmitted signatures by signing an original document. 

 

[Signatures contained on following page] 



First Amendment to Timberlands Option and Purchase and Sale Agreement Page 3 
PDX\32730108.6 

 

The parties hereto have entered into this Amendment effectiveas of the Effective Date. 
 
OPTIONOR: ONIONPEAK, LLC, an Oregon limited liability 

company 
  
 By: EcotrustForest Management, Inc., its Manager 

 
 
By:   
Name:   
Title:   
 
 

 
OPTIONEE: ARCH CAPE DOMESTIC WATER SUPPLY 

DISTRICT, an Oregon special district 
 

 
By:   
Name:   
Title:   
 

 



Endorsement of Arch Cape Forest Project 
Email from Rich Wollert to Phil Chick 3/10/22 
 
Dear Mr. Chick: 
 
My wife and I have owned a residence at the corner of Shingle Mill Lane and Third Avenue in 
Arch Cape for 30 years. During the last several years we have contributed to the Rainforest 
Reserve Project and, more recently, to the Arch Cape Community Forest Project. Shortly after the 
first project was successful in purchasing the Rainforest Reserve, the second project obtained 
funding for purchasing the Community Forest. The two tracts of land are adjacent to one another 
but the North Coast Land Conservancy is managing the forest in the Reserve while the Arch 
Cape Water District Board will manage the Community Forest once it has been purchased. 
 
Sometime last week we received a cover letter and related documents from three Arch Cape 
residents requesting that we sign a petition urging “the Arch Cape Water District Board to forego 
their plan to ‘operate’ the forest.” I read these materials and then reviewed the “FAQs,” “Forest 
Management Plan,” and “Watershed Acquisition Plan” on the Arch Cape Forest website. Finally, I 
consulted with other Arch Cape residents regarding various relevant issues. 
 
After taking these steps I am certain that the Community Forest Project, embracing and 
complementing the vision of the Rainforest Reserve, will be of great benefit to Arch Cape 
residents. Furthermore, managing the Community Forest falls entirely within the scope of the 
Water District Board’s mission. Finally, the Board’s framework for managing the Forest is 
responsible and appropriate. 
 
I am therefore writing you to express my unequivocal support for the Community Forest Project 
and for its management by the Arch Cape Water District Board.      
 
Please don’t hesitate to give me a call if you have any questions about specific issues related to 
my endorsement. Thank you for your service to the Arch Cape community, 
 
Rich Wollert 
503-757-7712 
 
Cc: Dan Seifer 
 





















10 March 2022 
 
From: Steve Hill 
To: Arch Cape Water District Board 
 
Re:  Campbell : Gardner : Cerelli Petition for alternative management of the Arch Cape Forest 
 
Request of the Board:  As you are aware, the Arch Cape Forest (ACF) Advisory Committee reported a 
strong sentiment to, if possible, preserve as much of the proposed Arch Cape Forest as possible.  I and my 
wife Joanne are in sympathy with their recommendations.  It is my hope that the Board will as a result of 
this petition and other separate contacts, consider adopting a management plan which would do just that 
including exploring the possibility of the North Coast Land Conversancy taking an active role in it’s 
management. 
 
Hopefully a maximum number of ancillary roads in the ACF may be decommissioned. A management 
plan which minimizes a professional forester’s and project manager’s cost to only those activities such as 
timber stand improvement which would accelerate specie diversity beyond what would be expected by 
leaving the forest completely untouched and only subject to natural forces should be sought.  Our goal 
should be strongest ecological health for the watershed possible and not the perpetuation of the clear cut 
harvest ‘tree farm’ experienced in the recent past.   
 
Comments on the “Background” reflected in the Petition:  Assertions made in the petition background 
are certainly subject to a different interpretation. 
 
Lack of Board Transparency:  You would have to have been dead to local civic affairs in Arch Cape to 
have escaped notice of the once in a lifetime opportunity pursued by the water district to acquire the 
community watershed from EFM and the associated financials surrounding that potential purchase.  
Notices were given in meeting agendas with accompanying Zoom broadcasts, board packet transmissions 
to the frequent distribution email list, Tunnel Echoes articles, notices on community bulletin boards and 
Daily Astorian articles.  Meeting minutes with supporting exhibits were posted to the archcapewater.org 
website.  Many of the comparative forest management economic scenarios were developed for publication 
to the community by an originator of this petition Rick Gardner.  They ranged from no logging to 
intensive logging.  The only information withheld from the public was specific specie composition and 
valuation projections covered by EFM stipulated non-disclosure language contained in the option to 
purchase agreement which is to survive through potential final close of escrow. 
 
Lack of Board Qualifications to Manage the ACF:  All evidence to the contrary given that the board 
marshaled the team including professionals from Sustainable Northwest and Springboard Forestry and 
other community resources which has lead to corralling enough funds from federal grants, and other 
sources to reasonably expect a successful close of escrow.  Should the option be exercised for a forest 
originally estimated to be valued at $5.3M for the favorable appraisal just received of $4.69M the Arch 
Cape community will have an asset of generational importance. 
 
The board isn’t qualified to operate the water treatment plant or wastewater treatment plant either but have 
hired a District Manager and Operator who are qualified to do so.  Similarly they would exercise ACF 
management through a Forester and Project Manager.  The question remains in what direction and to what 
extent that management will take place based on guidance from the board. 
 
 



Hill-Petition-ACF-Mgmt-Direction.doc  2  of 2 

Whatever your views on who may in future fill board positions, if past performance is any guide, the 
community will be well served by future volunteers.  The originators of this petition don’t give themselves 
enough credit for the high quality of their own past performance.  I repose all confidence in Bill Campbell, 
Rick Gardner and Bob Cerelli should they serve again.  
 
Management Distraction Negatively Impacting Rate Payers:  The on average higher expense of Arch 
Cape homes, particularly recently, has resulted in our community being well populated with individuals 
steeped in business experience including fiscal management of concerns far more involved and with more 
substantial budgets than the utility districts. 
 
The recent heavier weighting of meeting minutes devoted to the ACF is understandable given the 
opportunity of it’s purchase.  This has not come at the expense of traditional district business.  I have 
carefully observed the expenditure of public monies when providing back office support in the past.  They 
were not wastefully spent.  I understand the board fully intend to develop a new fiscal budget as has been 
faithfully done in the past including development of a new long rage financial plan taking into account the 
change in future capital projections for the districts.   
 
The 22% rate increase referenced from 2017 to 2021 doesn’t take into account the rate reductions in 
preceding years shown in this rate review from the inception of the district (stated for the predominant ¾” 
meters installed in the community).  These reductions were a result of incorporating excess usage 
revenues into daily operations and careful management by the board.  Current rates are in fact lower in 
total than those experienced in 2011. 
 

 
 
The water district rate comparison table was of great interest.  Given that other communities such as 
Astoria, Tillamook, Cannon Beach and Seaside have substantial business development and associated 
commercial revenues not available to Arch Cape, it’s impressive that there isn’t a greater disparity in 
annualized water rates.  Many residents have located their homes in Arch Cape specifically because it 
lacks industry.   
 
Conclusion:  I sincerely hope we can move forward in a way that makes our forest as ecologically strong 
as possible preserving as many trees as we are able. 


	2022.3.16 Board Packet.pdf
	2022.3.16 Board Packet.pdf
	BVA_FINANCIAL_REPORT_2021-22.2 Water.pdf
	BVA_FINANCIAL_REPORT_2021-22.2 Sanitary.pdf
	MEETING_NOTICE_2021_16_March22.pdf
	2022.3.16 Board Packet.pdf
	WD Agenda 3_16_22.pdf
	Resolution 22-01 WD.pdf
	SD Agenda 3_16_22(1).pdf
	Manager Report March 16 2022.pdf
	Sustainable Northwest - Project Management Services (2).pdf
	First Amendment (Arch CapeOnion Peak) - ver 6.pdf
	FIRST Amendment to TIMBERLANDS OPTION AND Purchase and Sale Agreement
	(Arch Cape Watershed)
	Recitals:
	A. Pursuant to that certain Timberlands Option and Purchase and Sale Agreement dated effectiveas of May 29, 2020, by and between Optionor and Optionee(the “Agreement”), Optionor granted to Optionee an Option to buy the Real Property located in Clatsop...
	B. The parties desire to amend the Agreement by (i) approving the Appraisal and agreeing upon the final Purchase Price for the Real Property, (ii) establishing a target Closing Date for 2022,and (iii) allowing Optionor to assign its rights and obligat...

	Agreement:

	Endorsement of Arch Cape Forest Project Rich Wollert.pdf
	SpringBoard Forestry Proposal and Resumes.pdf
	Hill-Petition-ACF-Mgmt-Direction.pdf



	Sanitary District Transactions 22.2.17-22.3.10.pdf
	Sanitary CR 3.16.22

	Water District Transactions 22.2.17-22.3.10.pdf
	Check Register 3.16.22




